
 

 
 
 
 

BOARD MEETING AGENDA 
Monday, November 10, 2014 
Regular Meeting - 7:00 P.M. 

 

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
 
 
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
 
David M. O’Hara 
Attorney 
 

   
1. Call to Order. 

 
 
2. Pledge of Allegiance. 

  
 
3. Roll Call. 

 
 
Motion 4. Approve Minutes of the Meeting of October 27, 2014. 

 

 
Information 5. Monthly Operations Report (to be reviewed by the Budget & Finance Committee). 

a. First Quarter FY15 Districtwide Balanced Scorecard Measures 
b. Collection Services (CS) Process Scorecard  
 

 
6. Written Communications. 

 

 
7. Oral Communications. 
 

The public may provide oral comments at regular and special Board meetings; however, whenever possible, written statements are preferred (to be received 
at the Union Sanitary District office at least one working day prior to the meeting).  This portion of the agenda is where a member of the public may 
address and ask questions of the Board relating to any matter within the Board’s jurisdiction that is not on the agenda.  If the subject relates to an agenda 
item, the speaker should address the Board at the time the item is considered.  Oral comments are limited to three minutes per individuals, with a maximum 
of 30 minutes per subject.  Speaker’s cards will be available in the Boardroom and are to be completed prior to discussion. 
 

 
Motion 8. Authorize the General Manager to Execute an Agreement with Kronos for Purchase 

and Implementation of a Time and Attendance System (to be reviewed by the Budget 
& Finance Committee). 
 

Motion 9. Approving a Motion to Cancel or Reschedule the December 22, 2014 Board of 
Directors Meeting. 
 

Motion 10. Board Member Compensation for 2015 (to be reviewed by the Budget & Finance 
Committee). 
 

 
 
 

Page 1 of 137



Information 11.    Information Items: 
a. Check Register. 
b. Board Expenditures, 1st Quarter, FY15 (to be reviewed by the Budget & Finance 

Committee). 
 

 
Information  12. Committee Meeting Reports. (No Board action is taken at Committee meetings):  

a. Budget & Finance Committee – scheduled for Thursday, 11/6/14 at 4:30 p.m. 
b. Construction Committee – will not meet. 
c. Legal/Community Affairs Committee – will not meet. 
d. Personnel Committee – will not meet. 
 

 
Information  13.  General Manager’s Report. (Information on recent issues of interest to the Board). 

 

 
Information       14.   Other Business: 

a. Comments and questions. Directors can share information relating to District 
business and are welcome to request information from staff. 

b. Scheduling matters for future consideration.  
 

 
15. Adjournment - The Board will adjourn to the next Regular Meeting in the Boardroom 

on Monday, November 24, 2014 at 7:00 p.m. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Public may provide oral comments at regular and special Board meetings; however, whenever possible, written statements are preferred (to be received at the 
Union Sanitary District at least one working day prior to the meeting). 
 
If the subject relates to an agenda item, the speaker should address the Board at the time the item is considered.  If the subject is within the Board’s jurisdiction but not 
on the agenda, the speaker will be heard at the time “Oral Communications” is calendared.  Oral comments are limited to three minutes per individual, with a maximum 
of 30 minutes per subject.  Speaker’s cards will be available in the Boardroom and are to be completed prior to discussion of the agenda item. 

 
The facilities at the District Offices are wheelchair accessible.  Any attendee requiring special accommodations at the meeting should contact the General Manager’s 
office at (510) 477-7503 at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 
 

THE PUBLIC IS INVITED TO ATTEND 

Page 2 of 137



MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 

October 13, 2014 
 
CALL TO ORDER. 
 
President Fernandez called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE. 
 
ROLL CALL. 
 
PRESENT: Manny Fernandez, President 
  Jennifer Toy, Vice President 
  Tom Handley, Secretary 
  Pat Kite, Director 
  Anjali Lathi, Director 
 
STAFF: Paul Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
  Rich Cortés, Business Services Manager 
  Andy Morrison, Collection Services Manager 
  Dave Livingston, Treatment & Disposal Services Manager 
  Sami Ghossain, Technical Services Manager 
  Maria Scott, Principle Financial Analyst 
  Richard Scobee, Senior GIS/Database Administrator 
  Louis Rivera, Mechanic II 
 Kristina Silva, Administrative Specialist I 
  Regina McEvoy, Assistant to the GM/Board Secretary 
  
APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF OCTOBER 13, 2014. 
 
It was moved by Director Kite, seconded by Director Lathi, to Approve the Minutes of the Board 
of Director’s Meeting held October 13, 2014.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
MONTHLY OPERATIONS REPORT FOR SEPTEMBER 2014. 
 
The Budget and Finance Committee reviewed this item.  Paul Eldredge reported the following: 

• There were two odor complaints, both in the City of Fremont.  Each complaint was 
investigated with no odors found. 

• There were no employee accidents in September. 
• Regina McEvoy began work as the Assistant to the General Manager/Board Secretary. 
• Dr. Connie Li began work as the Senior Process Engineer. 
• Mike Farsai started work as a Plant Operator III Trainee. 
• The General Manager transition between Rich Currie and Paul Eldredge took place on 

September 16, 2014. 
• A joint Board of Directors meeting between Alameda County Water District and Union 

Sanitary District took place at the Union Sanitary District offices on September 25, 2014. 

Page 3 of 137



• The Board of Directors attended a retreat on September 29, 2014, which was attended 
by the new and outgoing General Managers.   

• Several of the Directors and staff attended the Union City State of the City Address on 
September 30, 2014. 

• Rich Currie’s retirement party was held September 30, 2014. 
• Current projections indicate the average annual sick leave per employee is 49.36, which 

is higher that the goal of 47.  
 
Maria Scott reported the following: 

• The following capacity fees were received in September: 
o $72,000 from Coast Tropical 
o $120,000 from Lennar Homes 
o $87,000 from Robson Homes 
o $11,000 from Mercedes Benz in South Fremont 

• Current expenses include work on the Cogeneration Project and the Upper Hetch 
Hetchy Sewer System Rehabilitation. 

 
WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS. 
 
There were no written communications. 
 
ORAL COMMUNICATIONS. 
 
There were no oral communications. 
 
AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE CHANGE ORDER NO. 3 WITH 
GSE CONSTRUCTION COMPANY FOR THE THICKENER CONTROL BUILDING 
IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT. 
 
The Construction Committee reviewed this item.  Sami Ghossain stated the Board awarded 
the contract for the Project to GSE Construction.  The contract included funds for the purchase 
of domestic valves to conform to new American Iron and Steel (AIS) requirements for all Clean 
Water State Revolving Fund Projects.  On September 4, 2014, the State Water Resources 
Control Board provided staff with executed Amendment No. 1, which amended the finance 
agreement for the Project to waive AIS requirements, thereby allowing use of non-domestic 
valves for the Project.  GSE research found $154,769 in cost savings by purchasing non-
domestic valves for the Project, in addition to a shorter procurement time.  Staff negotiated a 
90:10 cost saving split with GSE, in the District’s favor.  The 10 percent cost sharing was to 
compensate GSE for identifying potential savings, and their time spent investigating and 
computing valve pricing.  Change Order No. 3 will reduce the change order rate to -1.35% of 
the original contract amount, and result in a total credit to the District of $139,292.  
 
It was moved by Director Kite, seconded by Director Handley, to Authorize the General 
Manager to Execute Change Order No. 3 with GSE Construction Company for the Thickener 
Control Building Improvements Project.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
GIS JPA FY15 BUDGET ADJUSTMENT. 
Note:  This item was previously listed as a motion item, and was changed to an information 
item following the recommendation of the Budget & Finance Committee. 
Page 4 of 137



The Budget & Finance Committee reviewed this item.  Richard Scobee stated USD will 
purchase a 3-year subscription service through the Southern Alameda County GIS Authority 
(SACGISA) from Alameda County for aerial photos, a copy of the new aerial photos to use in-
house, and access to the Pictometry Online browser service for $8,000 per year for FY15 to 
FY17.  SACGISA will contract Pictometry to digitize building outlines from the new aerial photos 
for a one-time cost to USD of no more than $8,400.  This adjustment resulted in a net $7,600 
reduction of the current FY15 GIS JPA project. 
 
ACCEPTING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014. 
 
The Audit Committee reviewed this item.  AJ Major, representing the District’s audit firm 
Vavrinek, Trine, Day & Company, stated the audit found the District’s financial statements to 
be accurate, neutral, and transparent.  No instances of noncompliance were found.   
 
It was moved by Director Handley, seconded by Director Fernandez, to Accept Financial 
Statements for Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
INFORMATION ITEMS: 
 
Check Register.  All questions were answered to the Board’s satisfaction. 
 
Report on the East Bay Dischargers Authority Commission Meeting of October 16, 
2014.  Director Handley reported the following: 
 

• The Commission discussed strategies and logistics for the Outfall Pipe Inspection 
Project. 

• The National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) report for September 
showed EBDA’s performance continues to operate within the normal range. 

• The EBDA JPA Ad Hoc Committee met to discuss non-controversial JPA language 
changes on October 15, 2014. 

 
Cal-Card Quarterly Activity Report. 
The Budget & Finance Committee reviewed this item.  Rich Cortés stated the Quarterly Activity 
Report covers transactions for the CAL-Card billing period June 24, 2014 through September 
22, 2014.  There were 184 transactions totaling $41,538.46. 
 
Status of Priority 1 CIP Projects. 
The Construction Committee reviewed this item.  Sami Ghossain stated there are 21 projects 
in the FY15 Capital Improvement Program (CIP) budget.  There are nine projects ranked as 
Priority 1, and 12 ranked as Priority 2, based on criteria prepared by staff and approved by the 
Executive Team.  Priority 1 projects are reviewed quarterly by the Executive Team, and all are 
currently on schedule. 
 
First Quarterly Report on Capital Improvement Program for FY 15. 
The Construction Committee reviewed this item.  Sami Ghossain stated CIP expenditures up 
to September 30, 2014, were above first quarter projections by approximately $35,000 due in 
part to the early start of excavation work for the Thickener Control Building Modifications 
project. 
 
Page 5 of 137



COMMITTEE MEETING REPORTS: 
 
The Construction and Budget & Finance Committees met. 
 
GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT: 
Paul Eldredge reported the following: 

• CASA appointed Paul to serve on the Federal Legislative Committee. 
• The CalPERS on-site audit was completed during the week of October 20 – 24, 2014.  

Per the auditor’s direction, Director’s information will be added to the publicly available 
pay schedule. 

• Paul attended the Union City Lion’s Club meeting on October 23, 2014, and provided a 
general overview of USD. 

• Paul will present to the League of Women Voters in Fremont on November 17, 2014. 
• Safety-Kleen Systems worked with USD staff to develop parameters that allowed them 

to run batches to be tested prior to discharge.  The first batch tested by USD staff was 
deemed acceptable for discharge, however the second batch was not.  USD and Safety-
Kleen representatives continue to meet to address the issue.  Safety-Kleen has not 
determined the cause of the contaminants.  

• A Fremont resident contacted USD to request the District contribute to the cost of their 
private lateral replacement.  The individual believed roots started in the sewer main and 
grew into their private lateral.  Staff believe the roots started in the private lateral and 
began growing into the sewer main, and do not believe USD is financially responsible 
for the private lateral replacement.  Pursuant to District policy, USD will reimburse the 
contractor for the cost of the wye replacement.  Per Board direction, Paul will forward 
information on the matter to the Fremont City Manager. 

• Interviews have begun for the Collection Services and Treatment and Disposal Services 
Manager positions.  Interviews for the three finalists for each position will be scheduled. 

• The tour of the Hayward Marsh with the East Bay Regional Park District Board will likely 
be scheduled for the end of November. 

 
OTHER BUSINESS:   
 
There was no other business. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:57 to a USD Video Board Workshop in the Boardroom on Monday, 
November 3, 2014 at 6:30 p.m. 
 
The Board will then adjourn to a Newsletter Workshop in the Centerville Conference Room on 
Monday, November 10, 2014, at 5:30 p.m. 
 
The Board will then adjourn to the next Regular Meeting in the Boardroom on Monday, 
November 10, 2014 at 7:00 p.m. 
 
 
 

Page 6 of 137



 

 

 
 

 

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
 
Officers 
Paul Eldredge 
General Manager 
District Engineer 
 
David M. O’Hara 
Attorney 

 
Date:  November 10, 2014 
 
To: Board of Directors – Union Sanitary District  

  
From: Paul Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
  Laurie Brenner, Organizational Performance Program Manager 
Subject:  Agenda Item No. 5a –Meeting of November 10, 2014 

District-wide Balanced Scorecard Measures 
 

Recommendation: 
Information only. 
 
Background: 
This report summarizes progress meeting the District’s strategic objectives for the first 
quarter of fiscal year 2014-15. 
 
 
Safety 
 
The District experienced two injuries during the first quarter of FY 15 quarter. Technically, 
one injury was incurred in the last quarter of FY14, but was not reported until 8/12/14. 
 
The average FTE on Limited Duty was 0.93 for the quarter, exceeding the target value of 
<0.5 established as our annual goal.  The total cost of Limited Duty is $11,575 to date, not 
exceeding the annual target, but of concern at approximately 50% of the annual target. 
 
All other safety measures are meeting targets, with slight concern over the number and 
cost of vehicle or equipment incidents. So far this year, there has been 1 incident of vehicle 
damage, against an annual goal of <2.   No claim for this minor vehicle accident inside the 
gate has been filed to date.  
 
The X-Mod for the District is above target at 1.16, as was reported in at the end of FY 14. 
 
 
 
 
See Table 1:  Safety Objectives and Measures, for District performance against all safety 
measures in Q1.  

 

Page 7 of 137



Agenda Item No. 5a 
Meeting of 11/10/14 
Page 2 

  

 

 
 
 

Table 1:  Safety Objectives and Measures 
 

Objectives Measures FY 15 to 
Date 

Annual 
Target FY14 FY 13 Current FY 

Comments 

Reduce the 
number of 
accidents 
 

Total accidents 
with lost days  
 
Other OSHA 
reportable 
accidents 

 
2 
 
 

0 
 
 

<4 

1 
 
 
0 

2 
 
 
4 

Left hand 8/12/14; 
right shoulder 
reported 8/14/14, 
occurred on 5/25/14 0 

Reduce the 
impact of 
accidents on 
employees 
and the 
District 

Ave FTE lost time 
Cost lost time  

0.08 
 

$1,889 

<0.5 
 

<$46,883 

0.05 
 

$4,897 

0.25 
 

$19,611 

Preliminary numbers 
as of 10/28/14 

Ave FTE limited 
duty 
 
Cost limited duty 

 0.93  
<0.5 

 
<$23,442 

0 
 
0 

0.15 
 

$6404 

 
Over 49% of annual 
target in Q1; area for 
concern $11,575 

X-mod 1.16 <1.0 0.95 0.85 Annual measure 

Incidents of vehicle 
or equipment 
damage 

1 <2 4 2 
1 minor vehicle 
accident; no claim 
filed to date 

Costs associated 
with vehicles or 
equipment 

$444.18 <$5000 $7,265 $0 

No claims to date; in-
house fix of taillight 
damaged in incident 
above 

 

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

FY 07 FY 08 FY 09 FY 10 FY 11 FY 12 FY 13 FY 14 FY 15

# 
Ac

ci
de

nt
s

OSHA Reportable Accidents

Lost time

All Other

Target All Other, max

Page 8 of 137



Agenda Item No. 5a 
Meeting of 11/10/14 
Page 3 

  

 
Table 1:  Safety Objectives and Measures, continued 

 

Objectives Measures FY 15 to 
Date 

Annual 
Target FY 14 FY 13 Current FY 

Comments 

Identify and 
correct poor 
practices and 
potential 
hazards 
 

# Facility 
inspections 
 

1 4 4 4 Field Operations and 
FMC shop inspected 

% of areas of 
concern 
corrected within 
45 days 

90% >90% 92% 93%  

# management 
work site 
observations  
 

77 >266 /yr 323 332  

Implement 
industry best 
practices 

# best practices 
site visits 0 >2 2 2  

Communicate 
our 
commitment 
to safety 

# GM 
communication 
on status of 
safety program & 
performance 

1 >4 6 7 Safety Strategy 
update 

# safety strategy 
reviews 
conducted by ET 
and EHSPM 

2 6 6 6 Reviews of prior and 
drafted strategies 

Increase 
employee 
awareness 
 
Educate 
employees in 
safe work 
practices 

 
# of major safety 
training events 
offered 
 
% of targeted 
employees 
trained 
 

1 7 
 
 
 

>90% 

7 
 
 
 

91.8% 

5 
 
 
 

96.6% 

Hazmat Handler  

90% 

Positive 
Responses on 
Employee Safety 
survey 

NA >75% 83% NA Not issued yet 

 
Green = met or exceeded target; or projected to meet annual target  
Yellow = will not meet annual target if trend continues; needs attention 
Red = Will not meet annual target by >10%; corrective action needed 
 
 

Page 9 of 137



Agenda Item No. 5a 
Meeting of 11/10/14 
Page 4 

  

 
Operational Excellence 

 
The District is meeting targets for most operational excellence measures. Exceptions are 
explained below. 
 
Both the % of Operating Expenditures and Priority 1 Special Projects Expenditures measures 
in the scorecard were below anticipated values in Q1, coming in at 21% and 4% respectively 
against annual targets of 95-103% and 80-110% for the measures.  The start of FY 15 has 
been slow in this arena, per the Principal Financial Analyst, but expenditures are expected to 
pick up in Q2 and beyond.  Quarter over quarter values may vary in these measures in an 
acceptable manner. 
 
 
Percentage of planned competency-based training milestones completed is behind schedule 
in some teams. The definition for this measure was revised for FY 15 and all teams (TPO, 
CS and FMC) are now using a common definition.  Weighting for various types of training 
activities were removed and annual targets for total modules to be trained annually were 
updated by the respective Work Group Managers.  
 
The target number of individual competency assessments for the Collections Services team 
was raised significantly from 27 in FY 14 to 52 in FY 15; however, only four were completed 
in Q1, which is of concern (under 8% of planned annual total). 
 
 
 
 
See Table 2, Operational Excellence Objectives and Measures, for District performance 
against all operational measures in Q1.  
 
 
See Table 3 for a list of public relations activities completed to date in FY 15. 
 

Page 10 of 137



Agenda Item No. 5a 
Meeting of 11/10/14 
Page 5 

  

 
Table 2:  Operational Excellence Objectives and Measures 

 

Objectives Measurements FY 15 to 
Date 

Annual 
Target FY 14 FY 13 Comments/ 

Progress 

Stewardship: 
Demonstrate 
responsible 
stewardship of 
assets and the 
environment 
 
Be prepared for 
emergencies 

Progress meeting 
public relation 
program goals:   
% qtrly milestones 
met 
 
# emergency 
preparedness drills 
or training events 

100% 
 
 
 
2 

>90% 
 
 

 
3 

98% 
 
 
 
3 

111% 
 

 
 
2 

 
20% of annual activities 
completed in Q1; 100% 
for the qtr. 
 
 
Planned event in August 
and an unplanned 
evacuation on 9/8/14 
with debrief 

Service: Provide 
reliable, high quality 
service 
 

Total number of 
adverse impacts 
USD activities have 
on external 
customers 

1 <10 12 7 
Misinformation leading 
to financial loss and new 
claim pending 

Response to 
Contact USD 
messages:  
% within 3 days 

96% >90% 95%  48/50 in Q1; New 
measure for FY 14 

Response time to 
service calls: % 
within 1 hour 

98.6% >95% 97.1% 98% 70 call outs in Q1 

Fiscal 
responsibility: 
Ensure funding for 
critical programs 
and projects, while 
maintaining 
comparable rates 
 
Accurately project 
and control costs 

Operating 
(previously ECB) 
Expenditures, % of 
Board approved 
budgeted 

21% 
95-

103% 
 

95% 97% 
Quarter over quarter 
values may vary in an 
acceptable manner 

Priority 1 Special 
Projects Expenditures 
(previously Priority 
Non-ECB), % of 
budgeted 

4% 80-
110% 84% 95% 

Expenditures are 
expected to increase in 
2nd qtr; slow start in FY 
15 

Residential Sewer 
Service Charges  NA <33rd  11.5th 12th  

# regional projects 
with financial 
benefit 

3 >3 2 4 

Target changed to >3  for 
FY 15; Continued 
participation in BACC, 
BACWWE Operator 
training program, CASE 

Asset 
Management: 
Manage and 
maintain assets 
and infrastructure 

# critical asset 
failures; no 
negative impact 
 
# failures with 
negative impact 

0 
 
 
0 

<2 
 

 
0 

1 
 
 
0 

0 
 
 
0 

 

# priority CIP 
projects completed 100% 85% of 

planned 9 11 

FY 15 Target changed 
from 100% to 85%;              
9/9 planned in Q1  

  
Page 11 of 137



Agenda Item No. 5a 
Meeting of 11/10/14 
Page 6 

  

 

Objectives Measurements FY 15 to 
Date 

Annual 
Target FY 14 FY 13 Comments/ 

Progress 

Environmental 
Protection: 
Maintain our ability 
to meet current and 
future regulations 
 
Implement projects 
and programs that 
benefit the 
environment 

# adverse impacts 
on environment 0 0 1 0  

#  Category 2/3 
overflows 1 <10 4  

Cedar Street event on 
9/2/14; 325 gallons with 
315 captured 
(evaporation accounts 
for remainder); no 
material reached 
waterways 

# Regional projects 
with environmental 
benefit 

3 >3 2 2 

Target changed to >3  for 
FY 15; BAPPG Pollution 
Prevention Program 
activities, ACWD Water 
Conservation Program; 
Green Business 
Certifications Program  

Efficiency: Optimize 
processes; use 
technology 
effectively 

See Timeline and 
Team Scorecards      

Planning: Plan for 
long-term financial, 
project and staffing 
needs 

% of Timeline 
projects on schedule 50% >90% 55%  New measure for FY 14; 

still under development 

Employees: 
Maintain a highly 
competent, flexible 
workforce 

% of planned 
competency-based 
training milestones 
completed 

43% 
 

100% 
 

66% 155% 

Measure was modified 
beginning FY 15- new 
definition across all  
affected teams; removed 
weighting by module 
type or activity 

# CS Assessments 
completed 4 52 22 38 

Target increased from 
27 to 52 in FY15; 
completed Stubs and 
Channels and Skid Steer 
Loaders for 2 EE’s in Q1 

Labor Relations: 
Foster a 
collaborative 
employee-
management 
relationship that 
encourages new 
ideas and 
continuous 
improvement 

Total % of 
employees 
participating in 
District taskforces or 
committees 

NA 45%-
55% 51% 52% Reported 2nd and 4th qtrs 

 
Green = met or exceeded target; or projected to meet annual target  
Yellow = will not meet annual target if trend continues; needs attention 
Red = Will not meet annual target by >10%; corrective action needed 
White= No target identified 
 
 

Page 12 of 137



Agenda Item No. 5a 
Meeting of 11/10/14 
Page 7 

  

 
Table 3: Public Relations Activities FY 15 

 

Project Goal/Milestones YTD 

USD website 
 

Update once a month; 
Progress on upgrade project 

√ 

Press Releases 
 

4 per year; post on web- Welcome Paul 
Eldredge 

√ 

Newsletter Annually Pending 

Community Outreach:  
3-4 events/year (items 
listed are examples 
only) 

Earth Day Fair (4th qtr)  

Newark Days Fair √ 

Plant Tours as requested- no target, but did 3 
in Q1 

√ 

Outreach to 5th grade teachers √ 

5th grade presentations, 35+ /year- normal to 
have none in Q1 (school is out a lot) 

Pending  

Alameda County Science & Engineering Fair 
Judge 

 

Career Outreach/Fairs in  Jr High or High 
School 

 

Career outreach to colleges or other groups: 
BAYWORK, CWEA- Chabot College 
presentation in Q1 by TPO/CIP (Pipkin and 
Pachmeyer) 

√ 

ROP/Solano College support √ 

Business Outreach Industrial Advisory Council meetings √ 

Green Business certification outreach 4x/yr- EC 
team changes impacting this activity 

No* 

Certificate of Merit Presentations (4th qtr) Pending 

Civic Outreach Presentations to Fremont & Newark City 
Councils 

Pending 

Charity Events 3-4 events  
Back to School Sept 2013, Thanksgiving Food 
Drive, Holiday Gift Drive 

Pending 

CIP Public Meetings 
 

As necessary Pending 

Check mark above means on target for the year 
Page 13 of 137



 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Directors 

Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
 
Officers 

Paul Eldredge 
General Manager/District 
Engineer 

 
David M. O’Hara 
Attorney 

 
DATE  November 5, 2014 
 
MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 
 
FROM: Paul Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
  Andy Morrison, Collection Services Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 5b - Meeting of November 10, 2014 
  Information Item:  Collection Services Process Scorecard 
   
Recommendation 
 
Information only 
 
Background 
 
We are in our fourteenth year of using this Process Scorecard.  This planning tool 
continues to be very useful in maintaining our focus on the prevention/reduction of 
sanitary sewer overflows and minimizing their impacts on our customers and the 
environment. 
 
Collection Services ensures that wastewater is kept in the gravity system from the point 
of entry by the customer, until it is received and processed at the transport system and 
the treatment plant. 
 
In order to achieve the goal of SSO prevention/reduction, there are five processes that 
need to be done well. 

 
System Management 

 72 month cleaning and inspection of the entire system 

 Effective selective line cleaning program 

 Easement maintenance 

Page 14 of 137



Page 2 
Board Meeting November 10, 2014 
Agenda Item 5b 

 
 
Pipe Assessment 

 Televise to determine condition 

 Address structural deficiencies through spot repairs or capital improvements 

 Address pipe capacity issues 
 
Control Roots 

 Mechanical removal 

 Chemical treatment 
 
Control Fats, Oils, and Greases 

 More frequent cleaning of selected lines 

 Reduce entry into our collection system at the source 
 
Service Requests 

 Timely response 

 Customer satisfaction 
 
Performance targets are based on the amount of work that needs to be done to support 
the 72 month sewer cleaning and inspection, selective cleaning, and root control 
program, and productivity standards originally developed by the Collection System 
Collaborative Benchmarking Group, in which USD participated, and later enhanced 
based on the results of an internal USD study. 
 
Collection Services workgroup employees are updated monthly on their performance.  
With this focused effort to prevent/minimize spills, we have managed to maintain a low 
number of spills and claims from spills this past year.  This year we are on course to 
have another successful year, including the past 28 months with only 7 SSOs, 
maintaining our place as a leader in CA, in Wastewater Collection System Operations 
and Maintenance. 

Page 15 of 137



Objectives

FY15 Collection Services BSC                           

Measures FY 15 Target FY 14 YE FY 13 Y/E

Customer Perspective:
•   Minimize Overflows SSO’s ·   # of Category 3 SSOs 1 SSOs 1 SSOs ≤ 10 Category 3 SSOs 4 SSOs Cat 3 New SSOs Cat 3

·   # of Category 2 SSOs 0 SSOs 0 SSOs •  Zero Category 2 SSOs 0 SSOs Cat 2 0 SSOs Cat 2

·   # of Category 1 SSOs 0 SSOs 0 SSOs •  Zero Category 1 SSOs 1 SSOs Cat 1 0 SSOs Cat 1

•   Minimize Negative Impact on 

Environment

·   Percent of spill recovery 95.0% Recovery 95.0% Recovery  •  50% Recovery 99.96% Recovery 100% Recovery

·   SSO’s # of Repeats 0 SSO Repeats 0 SSO Repeats •   Zero Repeats 0 SSO Repeats 0 SSO Repeats

Manage and maintain  assets and 

infrastructure

  •   Critical Asset Failures                                              

Sewer Main or MH Deficiency resulting in 

Category 1 SSO, sink hole, injury or resulting 

property damage > $2,000 due to one or more of 

the following:

0 Asset failure 0 Asset failure •   Asset failure 0 Asset failure 0 Asset failure

– Break, collapse, offset or hole in pipe or 

manhole.– PMP not followed

– Corrosion

– Defect identified & corrective action not 

taken.•    Stoppage in > 12” diameter mainline 0 Stoppages 0 Stoppages •   Zero Stoppages 0 Stoppages 0 Stoppages

•     # of times building becomes dangerous or 

unsuitable for occupation.

0 Incidents 0 Incidents •   Zero Incidents 0 Incidents 0 Incidents

Critical asset failure with a negative impact on 

customers or the environment

0 Incidents 0 Incidents Zero Incidents 0 Incidents 0 Incidents

•   Provide Uninterrupted Service Response Time from notification thru initial 

contact includes dispatch time

98.6% w/i 1 hour 98.6% w/i 1 hour ≥ 95% w/i 1 hr 97.1% wi 1 hour 98.1% w/i 1 hour

•   Reduce negative impacts of District Number of odor complaints attributable to sewer. 0 Odors 0 Odor ≤ 2 Odor 1 Odor 0 Odors

Financial Perspective:
•   Provide competitive service Cleaning – cost per ft/day/crew  $0.50 Per ft $0.50 Clean Per Ft Clean - $0.70 to $0.35 $0.68 Clean Per Ft $0.61 Clean Per Ft

      Cost per feet/day Televising – cost per ft/day/crew $1.10 Per ft $1.10 TV Per Ft TV - $1.64 to $0.84 $0.96 TV Per Ft $1.01 TV Per Ft

•   Minimize Claims & Fines Total Cost of Claims/Fines (from SSO's) $0 Total Claims $0 Total Claims Claims ≤$2000 $0 Total Claims $0 Total Claims 

$0 Total Fines $0 Total Fines Fines-$0   $0 Total Fines $0 Total Fines

Average cost per claim/fine $0 Avg Claims $0 Avg Claims Claims ≤$1000 $0 Avg Claims $0 Avg Claims

$0 Avg Fines $0 Avg Fines Fines-$0 $0 Avg Fines $0 Avg Fines

Internal Process Perspective:
•         Trouble Call & SSO response Response Time 98.6% w/i 1 hour 98.6% w/i 1 hour ≥  95% w/i 1 hr 97.1% wi 1 hour 98.8% wi 1 hour

•         Pipe/Problem Assessment Number of Repeat Spills 0 Zero Zero per year ≤ 2 per year Zero per year Zero per year

•         Preventative Maint. Program Year 2 of 2-Yr Catch Up Plan % Complete 32.0% % Complete 32.0% % Complete Annual Goal = 100% 74.7% Complete 81.6% Complete

TV Goal Footage 285,855 TV Footage 285,855 YTD TV Ftg 892,931 984,740 TV Footage 826,571 TV Footage

•         Cleaning (other cleaning omitted) Per Month Cleaning Footages 104,871 Avg Ft Per Mo 104,871 Avg Mo 106,016 Mo; 1,272,196 YE (w/o CI) 115,356 Mo; 1,384,388 YE 107,055 Mo, 1,284,656 YE

o     Feet per crew day o  Feet Per Crew/Day 3,841 Ft Per Crew/Day 3,841 Ft Per Crew/Day 4,000 to 8,000 Per Crew Day 5,525 Ft All Crews/Day 4,987 Ft Per Crew/Day

o     # of Crew Days o  # of Crew Days 21 # of Crew Days 21.0 # of Crew Days 27 to 13 Crew Days 20.8 # of Crew Days 20.8 # of Crew Days

•         Televising Per Month Televising Footages 95,224 Avg Ft Per Mo 95,224 Avg Mo 74,411 Mo; 892,931 YE 81,968 Mo; 984,740 YE 68,880 Mo, 826,571 YE

o     Feet per crew day o  Feet Per Crew/Day 2,174 Ft Per Crew/Day 2,174 Ft Per Crew/Day 1,800 to 3,500 Per Crew Day 4,024 Ft All Crews/Day 3,680 Ft Per Crew/Day

o     # of Crew Days o  # of Crew Days 24.3 # of Crew Days 24.3 # of Crew Days 41 to 21 Crew Days 20.5 # of Crew Days 18.5 # of Crew Days

Days Per Mo 2 Hydrojets Not Available 0 Days 0 Days <  3 Days 0 Days 0 Days

Days Per Mo 2 TV Vans Not Available 0 Days 0 Days <  3 Days 0 Days 0 Days

Learning & Growth:

# Training modules updated & taught 0
Module 0 Modules 4  Modules 1 Module 0 Modules

# of Training Modules w/instructions completed N/A 1 Module 2 Modules

# of individual Competency Assessments passed 0 Assessments 0 Assessments 52  Assessments 22 Assessments 38

•   Communicate Performance 

      Data to Teams # of time info shared with Team 3 Min. per mo 3 Min. per mo Min. 1 per/mo 12 12

•   Maintain and increase employee 

skills

•    Key Vehicles not Available For                     

Preventative Maintenance Program

Qtr 1 FY 15 To Date

Page 16 of 137



 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
 
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
 
David M. O’Hara 
Attorney 

   

 

 
5072 Benson Road Union City, CA  94587-2508 

P.O. Box 5050 Union City, CA  94587-8550 
(510) 477-7500     FAX (510) 477-7501 

www.unionsanitary.com 

DATE:    November 10, 2014 
 
MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 
 
FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
 Richard A. Cortes, Business Services Manager 
 Rufus Tai, Sr Database Administrator/Developer 
  
SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 8 - Meeting of November 10, 2014  

Authorize the General Manager to Execute an Agreement with 
Kronos Incorporated for Purchase and Implementation of a Time & 
Attendance System 

 
  
Recommendation 
 
Staff recommends the Board authorize the General Manager to execute an Agreement 
with Kronos Incorporated in the amount of $117,700.70 for the purchase and 
implementation of a Time & Attendance System. 
 
Background 
 
The FY’15 IS R&R budget includes funds for purchase and implementation of a Time & 
Attendance System. The total project is budgeted at $200,000. A request for proposals 
(RFP) was developed and issued on July 18, 2014. The RFP was sent to seven firms. 
Responses were received from three firms: 
 

• Kronos Incorporated 
• Tyler 
• Integrated Time 

 
The proposals were evaluated by the following members of the Project Team: 
 

• Kathy Destafney, Business Services Coach 
• Armando Lopez, Total Productive Operations Coach 

Page 17 of 137



 
Agenda Item No. 8 
Meeting of November 10, 2014 
Page 2 

• David Leath, Fabrication, Maintenance, and Construction Coach 
• Virginia Holslag, Accounting Technical Specialist 
• Jamie Rojo, Accounting Technical Specialist 
• Sharon West, Accounting Technical Specialist 
• Jose Rodrigues, Collection System Worker 
• Dave Drake, Plant Operations Trainer 
• Rufus Tai, Senior Database Administrator/Developer 

 
Two firms were invited to interview and both were selected to further demonstrate their 
systems: 
 

• Kronos Incorporated 
• Integrated Time 

 
Based on their price, experience, and proposed solution, Kronos Incorporated. was 
selected for the project. 
 
The current Time & Attendance System went live in December 2009, and cost 
approximately $212,000 to license and implement.  The operating system and database 
for that system will be unsupported by Microsoft in the summer of 2015.  Because the 
current Time & Attendance System was highly customized, it would be both risky and 
expensive to upgrade in order to reside on a currently supported operating system and 
database.   
 
As recommended in the 2012 IT Master Plan, Time & Attendance System was slated for 
an upgrade in FY 15, and therefore, we decided to solicit a new Time & Attendance 
System with approval from the Executive Team.  The project is anticipated to be 
completed by Fall 2015. 
 
The foundation of the solution proposed by Kronos is their commercial off-the-shelf 
(COTS) Workforce Central system. The 2012 IT Master Plan recommends procuring 
COTS software for major applications as a critical success factor. The project team is 
not seeking any customization from the vendor.  All pay and business rules 
implemented will solely be based on configurable functions from the system.  Kronos 
has also indicated in their proposal that this system will be able to fully support every 
pay and business rules in our current system.  
 
The project team selected Kronos’ hosted option which is a cloud solution in delivering 
the system to USD.  The Project Team compared this with an on  premise solution 
based on cost, quality of service, availability of service and determined that the hosted 
solution will be most advantageous to the District.  The Time and Attendance System 
will only host data containing hours worked and schedules.  The Human Resource 

Page 18 of 137



 
Agenda Item No. 8 
Meeting of November 10, 2014 
Page 3 

database is still being hosted within USD, and therefore, no personal information is in 
danger of being breached through the cloud solution.   
 
Staff selected to “piggy back” off of a US Communities negotiated software license and 
support agreement.  The terms were negotiated for all US government agencies small, 
medium and large.  The contract was first executed with Hartford County Public Schools 
in Maryland.  US Communities is a national government purchasing cooperative that 
provides the District more leverage power with Kronos being part of this consortium.  
District legal counsel has reviewed the software license and implementation 
agreements and has no issues with it.  
 
Staff recommends that the Board authorize the General Manager to execute an 
agreement in the amount of $117,700.70 for implementation of a Time & Attendance 
System. 
 
 
PRE/RAC/RT 
 
 
Attachment:   Statement of Work, Order Form, Functionality Matrix, US Communities 
Contract #14-JLR-003, Amendment one to contract #14-JLR-003 

Page 19 of 137



 

 

(c) 2014, Kronos Incorporated.  All rights reserved.  Information within is subject to change without notice. 

CONFIDENTIAL - Not to be disclosed to third parties without specific written consent from Kronos. 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

 

Statement of Work    

Union Sanitary District   

Implement Workforce Central in the Kronos Private Cloud   

  

  

  

  

  

   

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

    

Sales Executive  Murtz Kizilbash  Presales Consultant    

Expiration Date  2/3/2015  Service Portfolio Consultant  Howard Stohlman  

Customer Name  Union Sanitary District  File Name Control ID  2014-9176 

SOW Create Date  11/3/2014  Revision #  3 

Project Type  Net New Status  Approved 

Page 20 of 137



 

  

On Premise Response to RFP #S-15-S-198 | KRONOS INCORPORATED CONFIDENTIAL 

Page 2 of 16 

 

1. PROJECT SCOPE 

  

This Statement of Work (also known as the "SOW") documents the agreement between Kronos Incorporated and Union Sanitary District 

concerning the services to be performed by Kronos, including the deliverables, the costs of the project, the responsibility of each party 

and how the project will be managed.           

  

1.1. PROJECT OVERVIEW 

New Implementation of Workforce Central 7.0  

   

1.2. PRODUCT SUMMARY 

The following products are considered in scope for the services and fees defined within this document, unless otherwise noted 

below.  Additional products and/or licenses may incur additional fees. 

  

Product Implementation Type Version Licenses Owned Licenses Hosted 

Workforce Timekeeper New 7.0 150 150 

Workforce Employee New 7.0 150 150 

Workforce Manager New 7.0 25 25 

Workforce Integration Manager New 7.0 150 150 

Workforce Absence Manager New 7.0 150 150 

    

1.3. PROJECT DURATION 

Depending upon Union Sanitary District resource availability and project task capability, the duration of the project may need to be 

extended. This will increase the number of hours required for tasks that are performed on a weekly basis such as managing project 

communications, managing/updating project plans, facilitating project meetings and updating project status reports. 

  

Estimated Duration of Project 12 weeks 

  

 

1.4. PROJECT ASSUMPTIONS 

• All services remotely delivered. 

• Kronos' technical approach is consultative and collaborative – refer to appendix A (Functionality Matrix). 

 Kronos will configure 100% of the High Priority Items within the scope of this implementation. 
 Kronos will configure a minimum of 50% of the Medium Priority Items within the scope of this implementation 

and show USD project team how to configure remaining as agreed to by the project team. 

Page 21 of 137



 

  

On Premise Response to RFP #S-15-S-198 | KRONOS INCORPORATED CONFIDENTIAL 

Page 3 of 16 

 Kronos will configure a minimum of 25% of the Low Priority Items within the scope of this implementation and 
show USD project team how to configure remaining as agreed to by the project team. 

• The Union Sanitary District project team will be fully staffed & empowered to make decisions. 

• Professional Services are billed as consumed. Changes in project scope may require additional Professional Services, which will be 

handled through the Kronos Change Order Control Process. 

 
 
 

2. PROJECT GUIDELINES    

  

2.1. CHANGE CONTROL 

If the Scope of Services defined in this document changes at any time during the course of this project, Kronos and Union Sanitary 

District will review and adjust the scope and budget of services through standard Kronos change control procedures. 

  

Please review the Kronos Change Control Policy:  

 

http://www.kronos.com/professionalservicesengagementpolicies.aspx  

   

2.2. CUSTOMER APPROVAL OF SERVICE DELIVERABLES 

As part of the project, service deliverables may be provided to Union Sanitary District for approval and/or acceptance. Delays in 

customer approval/acceptance of deliverables will result in an extension of the project timeline and may result in additional services 

being required.  To avoid project delays and increased costs, Union Sanitary District should expect to approve/accept deliverables or 

provide written notification of errors to Kronos within five (5) business days after receipt of the deliverable.  Following the receipt of a 

revised deliverable, Union Sanitary District will then have an additional five (5) business days to report that all errors have been resolved 

and provide deliverable acceptance. 

  

2.3. ENGAGEMENT RECOMMENDATIONS 

Union Sanitary District is responsible for developing their workforce management policies and for documenting and disseminating 

business procedures and policy changes to support the Kronos system prior to Kronos implementing the policies. The Union Sanitary 

District Project Team will attend appropriate Kronos training prior to and while participating in the implementation. Union Sanitary 

District understands that Kronos recommends setup of both a DEVELOPMENT and PRODUCTION environment. 

  

Commitment from Union Sanitary District upper management is crucial to the success of the project. Kronos assumes Union Sanitary 

District will assign a Project Executive Sponsor. The Executive Sponsor is responsible for implementing the necessary change 

management for Union Sanitary District to embrace using an automated Workforce Management system and for ensuring the Project 

Team is appropriately staffed, made available and is executing their tasks according to the Project Plan. 

  

 

Page 22 of 137

http://www.kronos.com/professionalservicesengagementpolicies.aspx


 

  

On Premise Response to RFP #S-15-S-198 | KRONOS INCORPORATED CONFIDENTIAL 

Page 4 of 16 

  

3. PROJECT MANAGEMENT 

  

3.1. PROJECT PLANNING AND MANAGEMENT 

Kronos will deliver a customer implementation guide, a project workbook or checklist and facilitate periodic status meetings. 

   

Project Management Description 

Remotely Delivered Project Support Services  Average 3 hours per week 

    

 

4. IMPLEMENTATION METHODOLOGY PHASES 

 

4.1. SOLUTION ASSESSMENT AND DESIGN 

During this phase of the project, Kronos assists Union Sanitary District with ensuring all applicable requirements and Solution Design 

documents for the implementation of the product(s) are understood and completed. 

Customer's Commitment 

Prior to this phase of the project, Union Sanitary District shall validate connectivity to the Kronos Private Cloud.  Union Sanitary District 

shall also arrange for installation and network testing of the Timekeeper terminals, if purchased. In addition to completing the requisite 

Kronos training, the Union Sanitary District Project Manager shall ensure that all internal resources are coordinated and scheduled to 

participate in each assessment per their domain expertise or role as a decision maker. Also during this phase, the Union Sanitary 

District Project Manager shall begin to develop testing and education plans. 

  

4.2. SOLUTION BUILD 

During this phase of the project Kronos installs and builds the solution per the Solution Design documents. In addition, Kronos will 

perform basic unit testing to validate the build against the Solution Design document. 

Customer's Commitment 

During this phase of the project Union Sanitary District will provide access and security to the applicable network and servers and 

dedicate or make available, appropriate resources with the necessary domain experience. This includes IT resources to participate in 

terminal configuration and testing, and configure system backups. It may be necessary for the Union Sanitary District Project Manager 

to provide communication and access to a Third Party Software vendor during the build and testing of integration components or custom 

attributes. 

  

 

 

Page 23 of 137



 

  

On Premise Response to RFP #S-15-S-198 | KRONOS INCORPORATED CONFIDENTIAL 

Page 5 of 16 

4.3. SOLUTION TESTING AND DEPLOYMENT 

During this phase of the project Kronos supports the Union Sanitary District project team with testing to the Product Design document, 

resolving all critical open issues as well as deployment planning and support. 

Customer's Commitment 

During this phase of the project Union Sanitary District will finalize the test plan to support unit, integration and operational testing; 

complete test case scenarios in the Solution Validation Workbook; dedicate or make available on an as-needed basis, appropriate 

resources to test the product(s), ensuring representatives from all affected user communities participate in the test cycle. Union Sanitary 

District will also coordinate testing with other vendors, and if applicable, test and validate the data transfer from Kronos to other vendors. 

Union Sanitary District testing team will utilize the Solution Validation Workbook for unit and parallel testing and maintain the workbook 

as needed until testing is complete. Union Sanitary District will also write operational procedures and train user as needed for a 

successful deployment. 

   

  

5. PROJECT SCOPE DETAIL 

  

5.1. APPLICATION BUILDING BLOCKS   

   

General Information 

Number of Employees in Project Scope 150 

Number of Sites (facilities, locations etc.)  1 

Decentralized No 

Unions Yes 

Number of Managers that will be supported 25 

Workforce Central Technology Factors  

Total number of environments 2 

The database platform will be SQL Server 

Workforce Central Technology Services Scope 

• Lead Technical Readiness Assessment with Record Retention Configuration (2 environments) 

• Technical Preparation for Deployment and Support 

• 1 Application Install (2 environments on SQL Server) 

Workforce Timekeeper 

This product will be implemented in phase  1 

Number of Employees within Scope 150 

Page 24 of 137



 

  

On Premise Response to RFP #S-15-S-198 | KRONOS INCORPORATED CONFIDENTIAL 

Page 6 of 16 

   

Number of Assessment Groups  1 

Number of Deployment Groups 1 

Workforce Timekeeper Professional Services Scope 

• Lead Application Configuration Assessment 

• Standard Configuration: 7 labor levels: 1 pay policy groups: 5 schedule groups and shift templates: 10 holidays: 5 comments: 3 

function access profiles 

• Basic Accrual rules 

• Pay rules/work rules 

• Navigator Personas 

• Alerts 

• Delegate Authority 

• Time Off Requests 

• CA Meal Premium 

• Alerts Package 

• Valid Accounts or Valid Accounts with Multiple Approvals 

• Standard Testing Guidance 

• Deployment Planning and Go-Live Support 

Workforce Integration Manager 

This product will be implemented in phase 1 

Number of Employees within Scope 150 

Integrations In Scope 

• 1 Workforce Timekeeper: Basic Accruals Balance Import 

• 1 Workforce Timekeeper: Employee Import 

• 1 Workforce Timekeeper: Pay Data Export 

• 1 Workforce Absence Manager: Calculated Accruals: Balance Data Import 

• 1 Workforce Absence Manager: Calculated Accruals: Export 

Workforce Absence Manager 

This product will be implemented in phase  1 

Number of Employees within Scope 150 

Number of Assessment Groups  1 

Number of Deployment Groups 1 

Workforce Absence Manager or Accruals, Attendance, Leave Professional Services Scope 

• Calculated Accrual Policies 

• Leave Groups 

Page 25 of 137



 

  

On Premise Response to RFP #S-15-S-198 | KRONOS INCORPORATED CONFIDENTIAL 

Page 7 of 16 

   

• Leave groups follow same rules: paid or unpaid: Self: FMLA: non-FMLA: Personal: Military Duty:2 state-specific leave laws: 

CA:CT:DC:HI:IA:LA:MA:ME:MN:NJ:OR:RI:TN:VT:WA:WI. Modification of the Person Import to add licenses: profiles: administrator. 

• Lead Application Configuration Assessment 

• Standard Testing Guidance 

• Deployment Planning and Go-Live Support 

Data Collection 

This product will be implemented in phase 1 

Number of Employees within Scope 150 

Data Collection Professional Services Scope 

• Data Collection: Workforce Employee 

   

  

6. CLOUD SERVICES 

     

Union Sanitary District has selected the Cloud Services identified in this section. 

  

Cloud Customer Contact Information 

    

Contact Name Rufus Tai 

Contact Phone Numbers (510) 477-7529  

Contact E-Mail rufust@unionsanitary.ca.gov 

  

 Total Cloud Hosting Fees 

  

  

Monthly Service Fees 

  

Part Number 

Unit of 

Measure 

Initial 

Term 

Current 

Monthly Fee 

Fees (Added 

with this 

SOW) 

Total Monthly 

Fees 

CLOUD HOSTING WFC BASE FEE 

PER MONTH 

HOSTING-100 EA 12 $0.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 

CLOUD HOSTING WFC PER 

EMPLOYEE FEE PER MONTH 

HOSTING-101 EA 12 $0.00 $150.00 $150.00 

Total Monthly Service Fees:  $1,150.00  $1,150.00     

  

Page 26 of 137



 

  

On Premise Response to RFP #S-15-S-198 | KRONOS INCORPORATED CONFIDENTIAL 

Page 8 of 16 

 

6.1. CLOUD HOSTING SERVICES 

  

  

Datacenter KPC  

Hosted Environments: Standard Production and Development (non-Production) environment   

Included  

  

Additional Environments Included None  

Application Connectivity Mode:  SSL Firewall / Secure Open Internet 

Customer portal is provided and supported by Kronos facilitating secure authenticated access to customer 

applications. Portal access authorization is governed by customer requirements and is implemented by Kronos. 

Cooperative efforts with customer IT staff may be required to enable access. Kronos will assist with validating site 

connectivity but assumes no responsibility for customer Internet connection or ISP relationships. 

Included  

Backup Services:   Customer data is backed up daily. Daily backups are incremental, with one (1) full backup 

(includes configurations and history) performed every 7 days.  All database backups are replicated via encrypted 

SSL sessions to an offsite Kronos managed hosted environment for storage.  Backups are retained for the prior 28 

days. 

Included 

Restore Services:   Restoration of Customer's Production database to one non-Production environment shall be 

performed upon Customer request up to one time per week at no charge. More frequent restores or restores to 

additional non-Production environments shall require a time and materials fee. 

Included 

Citrix Licenses:  Named User licenses provided for accessing WIM Interface Designer and Custom Reports 

Designer.   

2 Included 

SFTP Accounts 2 Included 

Operating System and Database Management:  Execution of maintenance scripts, such as updating statistics, free 

space, indexes and database checks is included.  Kronos shall apply all critical security patches, service packs 

and hot-fixes necessary to maintain the uptime and performance of the servers and applications throughout the life 

of the hosted solution 

Included 

Server Maintenance:  Repair and replacement of defective or failed hardware and the installation of hardware 

upgrades. 

Included 

Kronos Application Upgrade Services: Services to apply Kronos application technical version upgrades, updates, 

Service Packs, and legislative updates (if applicable).  

Included 

Languages 

Note that multi-language support may require additional infrastructure and fees.  

English Only 

  

Page 27 of 137



 

  

On Premise Response to RFP #S-15-S-198 | KRONOS INCORPORATED CONFIDENTIAL 

Page 9 of 16 

   

7. EDUCATIONAL SERVICES 

  

7.1. INTRODUCTION 

  

As part of your overall solution, Kronos Educational Services are included to help secure maximum user adoption.  Kronos Educational 

Services has included an education strategy to train the implementation, functional and technical project team members and end 

users.  The curriculum is structured by employee job role to ensure that each member of your team who interacts with the application 

has a clear learning path designed to develop knowledge in a logical sequence. 

   

7.2. EDUCATIONAL SERVICES IN SCOPE 

    

Educational Service Description 

Project Team Training Includes product classes designed for key project team member based on individual job roles. All 

course delivery is purchased via training points to allow you to plan and budget training for your 

organization, yet give you flexibility to select specific courses to meet your implementation and 

continuing education needs.  Training points can be used toward instructor-led training in the virtual 

classroom, in the traditional classroom, and for onsite training.  Online course descriptions include the 

training point value.  Each course has a point value that equals the price of the class.  

Pricing for public classes, both virtual and in a Kronos classroom, is based on one student per paid 

seat. Pricing for each private event is based on a daily rate for the number of planned attendees. If 

additional students attend training, additional fees may be incurred. The total training points and 

associated cost will be reflected on your Sales Agreement. 

KnowledgePass™ Subscription KnowledgePass™ is an online educational portal that provides 24/7 anytime-anywhere access to in-

depth training content to help your employees maximize productivity and achieve their goals from 

implementation to optimization. Gain instant access to helpful tutorials, job aids, in-depth, hands on 

tools, webinars, and educational documents to help your team succeed. 

  

7.3. PROJECT TEAM TRAINING 

  

Course Name # of Seats/Qty Unit of Measure Points Total Points 

WFC 7.0 Administering Navigators  3 Seat 600 1800 

WFC 7.0 Administering the Application  3 Seat 1200 3600 

WTK 7.0 Managing Timecards & Preparing for Payroll  3 Seat 1000 3000 

WAM 7.0 Administering the Application: Leave  3 Seat 600 1800 

Page 28 of 137



 

  

On Premise Response to RFP #S-15-S-198 | KRONOS INCORPORATED CONFIDENTIAL 

Page 10 of 16 

Course Name # of Seats/Qty Unit of Measure Points Total Points 

WAM 7.0 Managing Leave Policies  3 Seat 500 1500 

WAM 7.0 Project Team Fundamentals: Leave  3 Seat 275 825 

WTK 7.0 Project Team Fundamentals with Calculated 

Accrual  

3 Seat 500 1500 

  

7.4. END USER TRAINING 

  

Service Name Quantity Unit of Measure 

InTouch Terminal Entering Time Employee Training Kit  1 Unlimited 

WFC 7.0 Employee User Adoption Kit  1 Unlimited 

WFC 7.0 Timestamp & Timecard Entering Time Employee Training 

Kit  

1 Unlimited 

WAM 7.0 Requesting Leave Employee Training Kit  1 Unlimited 

  

  

  

  

Page 29 of 137



 

  

On Premise Response to RFP #S-15-S-198 | KRONOS INCORPORATED CONFIDENTIAL 

Page 11 of 16 

8. PROJECT COSTS AND RATE SCHEDULES 

  

All estimates are quoted in USD.  US Communities contract Pricing. 

8.1. PROFESSIONAL SERVICES - BY ROLE 

  

      

Role Quantity Unit of Measure Part Number Rate Total 

Project Manager 36 HR 9990002-ONL $180.00 $6,480.00 

Application Consultant 282 HR 9990002-ONL $180.00 $50,760.00 

Technology Consultant 38 HR 9990002-ONL $180.00 $6,840.00 

Integration Consultant 32 HR 9990002-ONL $180.00 $5,760.00 

Totals: 388       $69,840.00 

  

8.2. PROFESSIONAL SERVICES - BY PRODUCT 

  

  

Product/Service Hours 

Project Management Services 36 

Technology Consulting Services 38 

Integration Consulting Services 32 

Workforce Timekeeper 190 

Data Collection 4 

Workforce Absence Manager or Accruals, Attendance, Leave 88 

Total Estimated Services 388 

  

8.3. EDUCATIONAL SERVICES 

  

Product Name Part Number Quantity Unit of Measure Rate Total 

KnowledgePass™ 8602748-001 1 EA $472.50 $472.50 

Bill-As-You-Go Instructor Lead Training  BAYG-ILT  14025 PTS  $0.90 $12,622.50 

Total Estimated Educational Services         $13,095.00 

  

  

 

Page 30 of 137



 

  

On Premise Response to RFP #S-15-S-198 | KRONOS INCORPORATED CONFIDENTIAL 

Page 12 of 16 

8.4. SOLUTION SUMMARY 

 
  

Service Type Estimated Cost 

Professional Services $69,840.00 

Educational Services $13,095.00 

Cloud Services Monthly Fees $13,800.00 

Total Estimated Investment $96,735.00 

  

  

Page 31 of 137



 

On Premise Response to RFP #S-15-S-198  | KRONOS INCORPORATED  CONFIDENTIAL 

Page 13 of 16 

9. SIGNATURES AND APPROVALS 

  

  

SUBMITTED AND APPROVED BY KRONOS REPRESENTATIVE 

  

  

By: _______________________________________________________   Date: _____________________________________________________ 

  

  

Title: ______________________________________________________ 

  

  

This Statement of Work is subject to Union Sanitary District's agreement with Kronos governing Professional, Education and Cloud 

Services. By signing below, Union Sanitary District's authorized representative agrees to purchase the services described herein. 

  

  

  

  

ACCEPTED AND AGREED 

  

Union Sanitary District  

  

By: _______________________________________________________   Date: _____________________________________________________ 

  

  

Title: ______________________________________________________ 

  

  

Union Sanitary District may make necessary copies of this document for the sole purpose of facilitating internal evaluation and/or 

execution of proposed project. Otherwise, the document or any part thereof may not be reproduced in any form without the written 

permission of Kronos Incorporated. All rights reserved. Copyright 2014. 

  

Page 32 of 137



 

On Premise Response to RFP #S-15-S-198 |  KRONOS INCORPORATED  CONFIDENTIAL 

Page 14 of 16 

  

APPENDIX A 

 

1.1. Functionality Matrix 

See “Attachment D” incorporated into this Scope of Work. 

 

APPENDIX B 

  

1.1. ENGAGEMENT GUIDELINES 

  

Please review the Kronos engagement guidelines: 

  

http://www.kronos.com/professionalservicesengagementpolicies.aspx 

   

  

1.2. HOSTING GUIDELINES AND ASSUMPTIONS 

  

• Estimated availability of Production server hardware is approximately 45 to 60 days after contract signature. 

• Customer must remain current on Software and Terminal maintenance for the volume of licenses and/or terminals included within 

the scope of this Service 

• One (1) VPN connection shall be made available at no charge, should VPN connectivity be required for any reason. Additional 

VPN connections are available, if requested, and shall incur additional fees. No more than 3 VPN connections to the Kronos 

Private Cloud are permitted. 

• Should VPN connectivity be required, the Customer shall supply their own VPN hardware capable of establishing an IPSEC 

tunnel to the Hosting site over the open Internet. Kronos will work with customer Network Engineers to bring up the VPN 

connection. The customer is responsible for the management of the VPN device on their side, their local Internet connection, as 

well as the configuration of the tunnel. It is the customer's responsibility to report tunnel connectivity issues, should they occur. 

Customer understands that they must have the resource knowledge to install and support the customer side of a VPN tunnel. 

• In cases where Network Address Translation is required for terminals, the customer is responsible for applying the translations on 

their network. 

• Kronos related Internet traffic cannot be filtered by proxy or caching devices on the client network. Exclusions must be added for 

the fully qualified domain names and public IP addresses assigned to the environments. 

• Custom Reports for Workforce Central are created using Microsoft Visual Studio. A basic version of Visual Studio is included with 

your installation and will be made available to the customer in their Development environment. 

• Customer reports for Workforce HR and Payroll are created with Crystal Reports designer. Should customer require that Crystal 

be installed in their Development environment additional fees shall apply. 

Page 33 of 137

http://www.kronos.com/professionalservicesengagementpolicies.aspx


 

On Premise Response to RFP #S-15-S-198 |  KRONOS INCORPORATED  CONFIDENTIAL 

Page 15 of 16 

  

• Transparent Data Encryption is not supported. 

• Modem clocks not supported. 

• Retention policies must be configured in the application(s). Setting retention policies will ensure that unnecessary system data 

(i.e. temp files, deleted records, empty rows, etc) is routinely purged from the system and will help in managing database growth. 

• Pricing set forth in this document includes sizing considerations based on a 3 year growth projection of the Production database 

environment. After 3 years an archiving strategy may be reviewed with the Customer. 

• Workforce Record Manager (if included) – Hosting of Workforce Record Manager requires that an archiving server is included in 

Customer's solution. When Workforce Record Manager is hosted it may only be used for archiving purposes. Setup Data 

Manager only supports import and export of configuration via XML files between production environment and development 

environment, a direct connection between environments is not supported.  Customer should open a ticket with Kronos Global 

Support to request migrations when necessary. Customer is allowed one ticket per month at no charge to request migration of 

changes. Additional requests for configuration and/or interface migrations between customer environments shall incur a time and 

materials fee. 

• Workforce Analytics (if included) – Customer environment shall be designed to support up to 20% of the total licensed users 

concurrently. Additional concurrent users may require additional infrastructure and associated fees to support. 

• The Cloud environment(s) will be sized based upon Kronos Best Practices and the scope of the project, as defined in the 

Professional Services Statement of Work or Statement of Work. Frequent execution of resource intensive interfaces and/or 

specialized use cases may require additional infrastructure to support. Kronos will work with the customer to scope the additional 

requirements. Should additional infrastructure or services be required, incremental fees shall apply. Incremental infrastructure 

fees will become effective when such changes are available in Customer's Production environment. 

• For security purposes, Customers are restricted from accessing the desktop, file systems, databases and operating system of the 

hosted servers. Additionally, direct database and ODBC connectivity is not permitted. 

  

  

1.3. APPLICATION SECURITY IN THE HOSTED ENVIRONMENT 

  

Kronos offers a hosting environment that complements and enhances the ability for Kronos to deliver application services in a secure 

manner capable of achieving a SSAE 16 SOC 1 and AT101 SOC 2 compliance report. Kronos hosting sites have achieved SSAE 16 

SOC 1 and AT101 SOC 2 compliance.      

Each customer environment is hosted in a segregated VLAN.  Traffic to the VLANs is regulated via redundant, next generation firewalls 

that limit access to authorized management and customer traffic. 

Customer Access 

Customers will access the Kronos web application via encrypted SSL sessions in the hosted environment.  The application provides the 

customer with the ability to configure application security and logical access per customer's business process.  In the event the 

Customer identifies an issue related to the security, availability or confidentiality of the data or system, the Customer will notify Kronos 

by contacting the Cloud Customer Manager. 

Customer may require file transfers to populate or extract Kronos application data. This shall accomplished using SFTP to send or 

retrieve files from the customer's application server. Kronos utilizes a commercial SFTP solution that runs over SSH and that enforces a 

Page 34 of 137



 

On Premise Response to RFP #S-15-S-198 |  KRONOS INCORPORATED  CONFIDENTIAL 

Page 16 of 16 

  

Public/Private Key Exchange to authenticate the end point and encrypt the data over the wire.  In addition, each customer has a unique 

named user account and associated password. This provides access to allowed endpoints, end point authentication, user 

authentication, and a private key to encrypt the data. Customer must provide all keys, if keys will be used.  SFTP data access cannot 

be restricted based on IP address. 

Kronos Management Access 

Management access to the hosted environment is limited to authorized Kronos support staff and customer authorized integrations.  The 

security architecture has been designed to segregate appropriate logical access to the environment to achieve a SOC 2 compliance 

standard. 

A centralized secure file transfer solution facilitates data transfers between the customer and their hosted environment.   This solution 

provides for an encrypted transmission and logging of all files transferred into or out of a customer environment. 

Kronos performs continuous monitoring in the hosted environment to achieve the SSAE 16 SOC 1 and AT101 SOC 2 compliance 

standards.  This includes performance, availability and security monitoring. 

Page 35 of 137



 ORDER FORM 
Quote#:  471421 - 1 Order Type:  Standard US
Expires:  27-DEC-2014 Date:  03-NOV-2014
Prepared By:  Kizilbash, Murtz H Page:  1/2

Bill To: UNION SANITARY DISTRICT
5072 BENSON ROAD
UNION CITY
CA 94587
United States

Ship To: Attn:ROSLYN FULLER
UNION SANITARY DISTRICT
5072 BENSON ROAD
UNION CITY
CA 94587
United States

Solution ID: 6121399 Contact: Rufus Tai
Email: rufust@unionsanitary.ca.gov

Payment Terms:  N30 FOB:  Shipping Point
Currency:  USD Ship Method:  
Customer PO Number:   Freight Term:  Prepay & Add

Order Notes:
This order entered into between the Customer and Kronos is subject to the terms and conditions of the Contract #14-JLR-003 dated March 18th, 2014 
between the Lead Agency (acting as the "Owner") and Kronos Incorporated (as the "Contractor").

Kronos agrees to provide Customer (12 free months) of no cost software support maintenance at the level of support indicated on this Order Form. The 
value of such free software support maintenance is $5241.43. Upon expiration of the first twelve (12) months of support, a renewal will be generated at the 
annualized rate subject to the terms of the agreement.

 

  
Your Kronos solution includes:

SOFTWARE
Item License/Qty Total Price
WORKFORCE TIMEKEEPER V7 150

WORKFORCE MANAGER V7 25

WORKFORCE EMPLOYEE V7 150

WORKFORCE ABSENCE MANAGER V7 150

WORKFORCE INTEGRATION MANAGER V7 150

Total Price $20,965.70
*Includes applicable software media

  
SUPPORT SERVICES
Item Duration Total Price
PLATINUM SUPPORT SERVICE 1 YR $0.00

Total Price $0.00
*Support values listed above are total for all applicable products in each section of this Order Form

  

Page 36 of 137



Quote#:  471421 - 1 Page:  2/2

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES / EDUCATIONAL SERVICES
Item Quantity Unit Price Total Price
MOMENTUM ONLINE REMOTE TEAM 388  Hours $69,840.00

Project Manager 36  Hours $180.00
Application Consultant 282  Hours $180.00
Technology Consultant 38  Hours $180.00
Integration Consultant 32  Hours $180.00

KNOWLEDGE PASS 1  Each $0.00 $0.00

ED SERVICES SUBSCRIPTION 1  Contract $472.50 $472.50

BILL-AS-YOU-GO INSTRUCTOR LEAD TRAINING 14025  Points $0.90 $12,622.50

Total Price $82,935.00

  
Item Quantity Total Price
CLOUD HOSTING WFC BASE FEE PER MONTH 12 $12,000.00

CLOUD HOSTING WFC PER EMPLOYEE FEE PER MONTH 12 $1,800.00

Total Price $13,800.00

 
QUOTE SUMMARY
Description Total Price
Subtotal $117,700.70

Deposit ($0.00)

Tax $0.00

Grand Total $117,700.70

 
 
 
 
 
 

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT
 

Kronos Incorporated
 

Signature: ________________________________
 

Signature: ________________________________
 

Name: ___________________________________
 

Name: ___________________________________
 

Title: ____________________________________
 

Title: ____________________________________
 

Effective Date: ____________________________
 

Effective Date: ____________________________
 

Invoice amount will reflect deposit received. All professional services are billed as delivered with a payment term of Net Upon Receipt. Unless otherwise 
indicated above, this order is subject to the attached terms and conditions which the customer acknowledges have been read. THIS ORDER IS SUBJECT 

TO APPLICABLE TAXES. THE TAX AMOUNT SHOWN ON THIS ORDER IS ONLY AN ESTIMATE. THE ACTUAL TAX AMOUNT TO BE PAID BY 
CUSTOMER WILL BE SHOWN ON CUSTOMER'S INVOICE. The JBoss® Enterprise Middleware components embedded in the Software are subject to the 
End User License Agreement found at http://www.redhat.com/licenses/jboss_eula.html.Shipping and handling charges will be reflected on the final invoice.

 

Page 37 of 137



1 
 

 

ATTACHMENT D (REVISED 07/25/14) 
Functionality Matrix to Attachment C 

Fully Meet: Included in Base Out-of-Box System 
Meet with Configuration: Needs configuration by USD Payroll or Vendor 
Meet with Customization: Not included – Customized Solution 
Meet with 3rd Party: Requires the purchase of a 3rd party application 
Cannot Meet 
Other 
Comments: Include any information you deem necessary for us to make an informed decision on this requirement other than what is 
included. 
 
Please refer to Attachment C for Pay Rule detail. 
 
1. Administration 
 

Pay 
Rule # Description 

 
 

Importance Fully 
Meet 

Meet 
with 

Config 
Meet with 

Customization 

Meet 
with 
3rd 

party 

Cannot 
Meet Other Comment 

5.3 Class differential set-up 
(pay and class code) 

 
 

High 

              

NA 
Delegate leave request 
approval authority – 
workgroup (department) 

 
 

Med               

NA 
Delegate on-call schedule 
assignment authority – 
workgroup (department) 

 
 

Med               

NA 
Delegate schedule 
assignment authority – 
workgroup (department) 

 
 

Med               

NA 
Delegate timecard approval 
authority - lateral (across 
departments) or up 

 
 

High 

              

1.1 Employee Profile Status - 
Unclassified, etc 

 
 

High 

              

1.2 Employee Profile Types – 
Exempt, etc 

 
 

High 

              

  

Rule assignments by profile 
type 

 
 

Med 

              

2 Schedules - 12 Hour 
Rotating 

 
 

High 

              

Page 38 of 137



2 
 

2 Schedules – Alternate 
(9/80, 4/10) 

 
 

High 
 

              

2 Schedules – Standard (8 
hour days) 

 
 

High 

              

8.1 Worker's comp  - injury / 
setup (per injury) 

 
 

Med               

NA Timecard auto population 

 
 

Low        

3 

Pay codes - classifying into 
pay employee groups (i.e. 
Plant Operators, operational 
staff, etc) 

 
 

High               

NA Extract timecards for upload  
to payroll system 

 
 

High 

              

NA Approved Leave request  - 
auto population to timecard 

 
 

Low 

              

7.2 
Vacation accrual chart with 
Maximum limits (by EE 
profile type) 

 
 

High        

 
2. Business Rules [Policy / Contract Compliance] 

Warning / error notifications for users and approvers 
 

Pay 
Rule # Description 

 
 

Importance Fully 
Meet 

Meet 
with 

Config 
Meet with 

Customization 

Meet 
with 
3rd 

party 

Cannot 
Meet Other Comment 

2.2 40 Hours Per Week on 
timecard (validation) 

 
 

Med 

              

4.3.(f), 
7.1 Flex & HEC Validation 

 
 

Low 

              

7.4 FMLA tracking -  rolling 12 
month limit 

 
 

Low 

              

7.6 Funeral leave >24 hours 

 
 

Low 

              

Page 39 of 137



3 
 

2.3 Greater than 16 hours 
worked in day 

 
 

Low 

              

NA 
Insufficient Leave (each 
leave bank should have 
this) 

 
 

Med 

              

NA Invalid Holiday 

 
 

Low 

              

NA Overlapping time entries 

 
 

Low 

              

 NA 

Regular hours entered, no 
schedule 

 
 

Low 
              

7.4 Sick leave balance <=27 
hours check CAT eligibility 

 
 

Low 

              

7.2 
Vacation - Classified 
employees not eligible to 
use during first 6 months 

 
 

Low 

              

8.1 Worker's comp  - time off 
(1040 hours limit per injury) 

 
 

Low 

              

 
 
3. Pay Rules 
 

Pay 
Rule # Description 

 
 

Importance Fully 
Meet 

Meet 
with 

Config 
Meet with 

Customization 

Meet 
with 
3rd 

party 

Cannot 
Meet Other Comment 

5.5 
Call Back – Minimum 
(difference if worked less 
than guaranteed minimum) 

 
 

Med 

              

5.5 Call Back – Pay at 1.5X 

 
 

High               

5.5 

Call Back by Phone – 
Minimum (difference if 
worked less than 
guaranteed minimum) 

 
 

Med               

5.5 Call Back by Phone – pay at 
1.5X 

 
 

High 

              

Page 40 of 137



4 
 

5.3 Class Differential - flat rate 

 
 

High 

              

5.3 Class Differential - 
percentage 

 
 

High 

              

4.3 FLEX Cash Back 

 
 

Low 

              

5.2 Night shift change - 2 shifts 
start on same calendar day 

 
 

High 

              

5.2 Night shift change - 
vacation accrual 

 
 

Med 

              

5.2 Night shift change < 48 hrs 
notice pay 

 
 

Med 

              

6.4(b) Holiday Banked - rotating 
operator 

 
 

Med 

              

6.4(b)(
2) 

Holiday Normal Off - 
rotating operator 

 
 

Med 

              

6 Holiday profiles 

 
 

High 

              

6.4(b) Holiday Worked - rotating 
operator (special rules) 

 
 

Med 

              

6.4(b)(
1) Holiday Worked (overtime) 

 
 

Med 

              

7.3 MAL Cash Back 

 
 

Low 

              

5.8 Meal allowance for overtime 

 
 

Low 

              

Page 41 of 137



5 
 

5.8 Meal allowance for overtime 
- callback 

 
 

Low 

              

5.8 Meal allowance for overtime 
- scheduled OT 

 
 

Low 

              

5.7 OC Differential 

 
 

Low 

              

5.4 On-Call scheduling and 
associated pay 

 
 

High 

              

4.3 
OT Banked – Classified 
(aka Comp Time; converts 
to Flex Leave) 

 
 

High 

              

4.4 
OT Banked – Unclassified 
(aka Comp Time; eligible for 
use next FY) 

 
 

High 

              

4.2 
Overtime (weekly – greater 
than 40 hours paid with 
exceptions) 

 
 

High 

              

2.3, 
5.1 

Night Shift Differential 12% - 
rotating operator only 

 
 

High 

              

2.3, 
5.1 

Grave Shift Differential 7% - 
non-exempt employees 
excluding rotating operator 

 
 

High 

              

2.3, 
5.1 

Swing Shift Differential 5% - 
currently 1 classified 
employee 

 
 

High 

       

NA 
Timecard corrections for 
prior pay periods – for 
payroll staff only 

 
 

Med 

              

7.2 Vacation Cash Back 

 
 

Low 

       

4.4 OT Bank Use Cash Back 

 
 

Low 

       

Page 42 of 137



6 
 

 
 
4. Reporting 
 

Pay 
Rule # Description 

 
 

Importance Fully 
Meet 

Meet 
with 

Config 
Meet with 

Customization 

Meet 
with 
3rd 

party 

Cannot 
Meet Other Comment 

NA Attendance/Reason Codes 

 
 

High 

              

5.3 Class differential hours and 
pay  

 
 

Med               

7.1 
Leave banks - including 
balance, accrual and usage 
by EE profile type 

 
 

High 

              

NA On-Call Schedules 

 
 
 

Low 

              

NA Report Builder module 

 
 

Med 

              

8.1 Worker's comp  - time off  
per injury 

 
 

Med               

 
 
5. Tracking 
 

Pay 
Rule # Description Fully 

Meet 
Meet 
with 

Config 
Meet with 

Customization 
Meet 

with 3rd 
party 

Cannot 
Meet Other Comment 

 
 
 

 

Page 43 of 137



Page 44 of 137



Page 45 of 137



Page 46 of 137



Page 47 of 137



Page 48 of 137



Page 49 of 137



Page 50 of 137



Page 51 of 137



Page 52 of 137



Page 53 of 137



Page 54 of 137



Page 55 of 137



Page 56 of 137



Page 57 of 137



Page 58 of 137



Page 59 of 137



Page 60 of 137



Page 61 of 137



Page 62 of 137



Page 63 of 137



Page 64 of 137



Page 65 of 137



Page 66 of 137



Page 67 of 137



Page 68 of 137



Page 69 of 137



Page 70 of 137



Page 71 of 137



Page 72 of 137



Page 73 of 137



Page 74 of 137



Page 75 of 137



Page 76 of 137



Page 77 of 137



Page 78 of 137



Page 79 of 137



Page 80 of 137



Page 81 of 137



Page 82 of 137



Page 83 of 137



Page 84 of 137



Page 85 of 137



Page 86 of 137



Page 87 of 137



Page 88 of 137



Page 89 of 137



Page 90 of 137



Page 91 of 137



Page 92 of 137



Page 93 of 137



Page 94 of 137



Page 95 of 137



Page 96 of 137



Page 97 of 137



Page 98 of 137



Page 99 of 137



Page 100 of 137



Page 101 of 137



Page 102 of 137



Page 103 of 137



Page 104 of 137



 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
David M. O’Hara 
Attorney 

 
DATE: November 3, 2014 
 
MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 
 
FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 9 - Meeting of November 10, 2014 
 MOTION TO CANCEL OR RESCHEDULE THE DECEMBER 22, 2014 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
  
Recommendation 
 
None. 
 
Background 
 
The second regularly scheduled meeting of the Board of Directors in December falls 
during the same period as the Christmas holidays.  Traditionally, this is a time that 
many employees take vacation leave, and in the past, the Board has canceled the 
second meeting in December.  Again this year, staff is recommending the Board 
consider canceling or rescheduling the meeting scheduled for December 22, 2014.  We 
do not anticipate any critical actions requiring Board approval relative to either 
operations or contract work. 
 
The next regular Board Meeting would be held on Monday, January 12, 2015. 

 
 
 
  
 
 

Page 105 of 137



 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
David M. O’Hara 
Attorney 

 
DATE: November 3, 2014 
 
MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 
 
FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 10 - Meeting of November 10, 2014 
 BOARD MEMBER COMPENSATION FOR 2015 
  
Recommendation 
 
The Budget & Finance Committee will present their recommendation to the Board. 
 
Background 
 
The California Health and Safety Code (code section 4733 and 6489) allows for an 
increase in Board Member compensation of up to 5% per year.  In 2000, the Board 
adopted Ordinance #44 stating that on January 1 of each year, Board Member 
compensation shall be increased by the amount of increase of the classified 
employees’ wages for the year.  The Ordinance also provides for the Board to review 
the compensation increase prior to it going into effect on January 1.  Board Members 
have voted not to increase their meeting stipend since 2003. 
 
The classified employee contract provided for an increase in 2014 of 3.5% to the base 
salaries.  The Bay Area Consumer Price Index (CPI) increased by 2.9% from August 
2013 to August 2014. 
 
Attached is a copy of Ordinance #44 as well as a summary of the Board actions on this 
matter since 2000. 

 
 
 
  
 
 

Page 106 of 137



TTTTThhhhhiiiiis
 is

 an
 OOOOO

ffffffffffiiic
ial

 IIIIImmmmm
aaaaaggggg

eeeee o
fffff aaaa

 CCCCC
eeeeerrrrrttttt

iiiiiffffie
d UUUUU

SSSSSDDDDD DDDDD
oooooccccc

uuuuummmmm
eeeeennnnn

ttttt

4733

Page 107 of 137



History of Board Member Compensation 2000 – Present 

Calendar 
Year 

Board Meeting 
Compensation 
(per day of 
service, maximum 
6/month) 

Notes/Background 

   
2000 $100 Per State Law, Health and Safety Code 4933, 6489 
   
2001 $198 

 
See Note 1 for calculation. 

Per amended Health and Safety Code with Reference to 
Water Code, USD passed Ordinance 44 (4-1 vote on 
10/23/2000) establishing new baseline of $198/day of 
service using allowable escalator from Water Code.  
Established annual increase equal to classified employee 
increase per USD/Union employee contract, with provision 
for Board to discuss annually. 

   
2002 $205.92 Increase per Ordinance 44 based on 4% increase for 

classified employees in 2001.  No action taken by Board of 
Directors. 

   
2003 $212.10 Increase per Ordinance 44 based on 3% increase for 

classified employees in 2002.  Board agreed to take no 
action on Ordinance 44 (11/11/2002) 

   
2004 $212.10 Board voted 5-0 not to increase compensation for 2004. 

(11/24/2003) 
   
2005 $212.10 Board voted 5-0 not to increase compensation for 2005. 

(11/22/2004) 
   
2006 $212.10 Board agreed by consensus not to increase compensation 

for 2006.  (1/9/2006) 
   
2007 $212.10 Board agreed by consensus not to increase compensation 

for 2007. (12/11/2006) 
   
2008 $212.10 Board agreed by consensus not to increase compensation 

for 2008.  (12/10/2007) 
   
2009 $212.10 Board voted unanimously not to increase compensation for 

2009. (11/24/08) 

Note 1:  H&S and Water Codes established a method for calculating new baseline as a maximum of 5% per year since the last 
adjustment.  The $100 per meeting was established in 1986.  Ordinance 44 was adopted in 2000.  The time period for 
adjustment was 1986-2000, or 14 years.  The new meeting fee was calculated as $100 x 1.0514 = $198.00. 
Page 108 of 137



Calendar 
Year 

Board Meeting 
Compensation 
(per day of 
service, maximum 
6/month) 

Notes/Background 

   
2010 $212.10 Board voted unanimously not to increase compensation for 

2010.  (11/23/2009) 
   
2011 $212.10 Board voted unanimously not to increase compensation for 

2011.  (11/22/2010) 
   
2012 $212.10 Board voted unanimously not to increase compensation for 

2012.  (11/27/2011) 
   
2013 $212.10 Board voted unanimously not to increase compensation for 

2013.  (11/26/2012) 
   
2014  $212.10 Board voted unanimously not to increase compensation for 

2014.  (11/23/2013) 
 

Note 1:  H&S and Water Codes established a method for calculating new baseline as a maximum of 5% per year since the last 
adjustment.  The $100 per meeting was established in 1986.  Ordinance 44 was adopted in 2000.  The time period for 
adjustment was 1986-2000, or 14 years.  The new meeting fee was calculated as $100 x 1.0514 = $198.00. 
Page 109 of 137



Check No.

155863

155899

155701

155619

155654

155737

155736

155609

155626

155682

Date

10/23/2014

10/30/2014

10/30/2014

10/30/2014

10/23/2014

10/23/2014

10/23/2014

10/30/2014

10/30/2014

10/30/2014

10/23/2014

10/23/2014

10/23/2014

10/23/2014

10/23/2014

10/30/2014

10/30/2014

Invoice No.

13323

800403.1

3773

3798

201300819

20130355

170120141009

778631

778630

2025950

5104858

5104857

5104804

901892331

90188/0013

62527

62547

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

CHECK REGISTER

10/18/2014-10/31/2014

Vendor

SAK CONSTRUCTION LLC

DARCY & HARTY CONSTRUCTION

DW NICHOLSON CORP

COVELLO GROUP INC

PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC

WESTERN STATES OIL CO

WEST YOST & ASSOCIATES

ALL INDUSTRIAL ELECTRIC SUPPLY

EVOQUA WATER TECHNOLOGIES

3T EQUIPMENT COMPANY INC

Description

UPPER HETCH HETCHY SS REHABILITATION

MISC. SS SPOT REPAIRS PHASE V PROJECT

PRIMARY DIGESTER #5 REHABILITATION

COGENERATION PROJECT

COGENERATION PROJECT

THICKENER CONROL BUILDING IMPROVEMENTS PHASE II

SERV TO 09/22/14 PLANT

4,490 GALS UNDYED CARB ULTRA LOW SULFUR DIESEL

4,980 GALS UNLEADED GASOLINE WITH 10% ETHANOL

NEWARK BACKYARD SS RELOCATION - PHASE 2

60 E-LIGHTFIXTURES, 1.000 MINATURE BULBS

3 LED POST TOP LAMP

21 LED HIGH BAY 18K LIGHTS

Dl WATER SYSTEM

2.533 GALS HYDROGEN PEROXIDE

3 3-PIN MALE X 6-PIN FEMALE 30"

24 PIPEPATCH KIT - WINTER

Pagel of 13

Invoice Amt

$855,879.08

S434.816.90

387,687.28

$116,871.97

$51,689.75

$30,474.79

$76,903.93

$14,754.66

S15.592.56

$20,418.12

$127.92

S308.79

$14,659.31

$330.00

$11,760.21

$589.89

$11,484.36

Check Amt

$855,879.08

$434,816.90

$204,559.25

$82,164.54

$76,903.93

$30,347.22

$20,418.12

$15,096.02

S12.090.21

$12,074.25

Page 110 of 137



Page 111 of 137



Page 112 of 137



Page 113 of 137



Page 114 of 137



Page 115 of 137



Page 116 of 137



Page 117 of 137



Page 118 of 137



Page 119 of 137



Page 120 of 137



Page 121 of 137



Page 122 of 137



BOARDOFDIRECTORS
QUARTERLYTRAVELANDTRAININGEXPENDITUREREPORT

1STQTR,FISCALYEAR2015

BoardMembersDescription1stQtr2ndQtr3rdQtr4thQtr
Beginning

Balance

Y-T-D

Expense
Balance

Available

FERNANDEZ,MANNY
UnionCity-StateoftheCityLuncheon:Registration

TOTAL

30,00

30.000.000.000.005000.00::30.00:4970.00

HANDLEY.TOM
UnionCity•StateoftheCityLuncheon:Registration
59thCASAConference:Registration

TOTAL

3000

500.00

530.000.000.000.005000:oo:530.004470.00

HARRISON.JENNIFER

TOTAL0.000.000.000.005000.000.005000.00

KITE.PAT

TOTALI0.000.00O.000.00:::5000;00:•:•••••:•0.005000.00

LATHI,ANJALI
UnionCity-StateoftheCityLuncheon:Registration
59thCASAConference:Registration
59thCASAConference:Lodging
59thCASAConference:Meals
59thCASAConference:Mileage&Tips

TOTAL

30.00

500.00

652.70

2036
10164

I1,304.70|0.00>0.00O.00::5000.00::::::1;304:703695.30

GRANDTOTALI1,864.70t0.00I0.00I0.0025000.001.864.7023135.30

TheBoardofDirectors'QuarterlyExpenditure
Reportisattachedaspartofthecheckregister
inaccordancewithBoardMemberBusiness
ExpensepolicyadoptedSeptember5.1991

Page 123 of 137



Page 124 of 137



Page 125 of 137



Page 126 of 137



Page 127 of 137



Page 128 of 137



Page 129 of 137



Page 130 of 137



Page 131 of 137



Page 132 of 137



Page 133 of 137



Page 134 of 137



Page 135 of 137



Page 136 of 137



Page 137 of 137


	1 11-10-14 Agenda
	1. Call to Order.
	2. Pledge of Allegiance.
	3. Roll Call.
	Information 5. Monthly Operations Report (to be reviewed by the Budget & Finance Committee).
	a. First Quarter FY15 Districtwide Balanced Scorecard Measures
	b. Collection Services (CS) Process Scorecard
	6. Written Communications.
	7. Oral Communications.
	a. Comments and questions. Directors can share information relating to District business and are welcome to request information from staff.
	b. Scheduling matters for future consideration.
	THE PUBLIC IS INVITED TO ATTEND

	4 10-27-14 Minutes
	UCALL TO ORDER.
	President Fernandez called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.
	UPLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE.
	UROLL CALL.
	PRESENT: Manny Fernandez, President
	Jennifer Toy, Vice President
	Tom Handley, Secretary
	Pat Kite, Director
	Anjali Lathi, Director
	STAFF: Paul Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer
	Rich Cortés, Business Services Manager
	Andy Morrison, Collection Services Manager
	Dave Livingston, Treatment & Disposal Services Manager
	Sami Ghossain, Technical Services Manager
	Maria Scott, Principle Financial Analyst
	Richard Scobee, Senior GIS/Database Administrator
	Louis Rivera, Mechanic II
	Kristina Silva, Administrative Specialist I
	Regina McEvoy, Assistant to the GM/Board Secretary
	UAPPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF OCTOBER 13, 2014.
	UMONTHLY OPERATIONS REPORT FOR SEPTEMBER 2014.
	The Budget and Finance Committee reviewed this item.  Paul Eldredge reported the following:
	 There were two odor complaints, both in the City of Fremont.  Each complaint was investigated with no odors found.
	 There were no employee accidents in September.
	 Regina McEvoy began work as the Assistant to the General Manager/Board Secretary.
	 Dr. Connie Li began work as the Senior Process Engineer.
	 Mike Farsai started work as a Plant Operator III Trainee.
	 The General Manager transition between Rich Currie and Paul Eldredge took place on September 16, 2014.
	 A joint Board of Directors meeting between Alameda County Water District and Union Sanitary District took place at the Union Sanitary District offices on September 25, 2014.
	 The Board of Directors attended a retreat on September 29, 2014, which was attended by the new and outgoing General Managers.
	 Several of the Directors and staff attended the Union City State of the City Address on September 30, 2014.
	 Rich Currie’s retirement party was held September 30, 2014.
	 Current projections indicate the average annual sick leave per employee is 49.36, which is higher that the goal of 47.
	Maria Scott reported the following:
	 The following capacity fees were received in September:
	o $72,000 from Coast Tropical
	o $120,000 from Lennar Homes
	o $87,000 from Robson Homes
	o $11,000 from Mercedes Benz in South Fremont
	 Current expenses include work on the Cogeneration Project and the Upper Hetch Hetchy Sewer System Rehabilitation.

	5a.District BSC 111014
	Laurie Brenner, Organizational Performance Program Manager
	Measures
	Objectives
	Other OSHA reportable accidents
	Ave FTE lost time
	Cost lost time 
	Ave FTE limited duty
	Cost limited duty
	X-mod
	Incidents of vehicle or equipment damage
	Costs associated with vehicles or equipment
	Objectives
	Implement industry best practices
	Communicate our commitment to safety
	Increase employee awareness
	Project
	USD website
	√
	4 per year; post on web- Welcome Paul Eldredge
	Press Releases
	Newsletter
	Community Outreach: 
	3-4 events/year (items listed are examples only)
	Business Outreach
	Civic Outreach
	Charity Events
	CIP Public Meetings

	5b - CS FY15 BSC
	FY15 Q1 BSC  Report for Collection Services WG
	FY15 BSC Collection Services

	8 TimeAttendance_BoardItem_Final
	Time and Attendance Board Item
	Union Sanitary District New WFC Implementation in KPC SOW 11032014 r4
	Union Sanitary District Net New HOSTED US COMM Quote 471421
	ATTACHMENT D
	ATTACHMENT D (REVISED 07/25/14)

	Contract_14-JLR-003
	KRO_Amendment_1_June_2014

	9 Cancel or Reschedule 12242014 meeting
	10.1 Board Member Compensation
	10.2 Ordinance 44
	10.3 History of Board Compensation Since 2000
	11a Bd Ck Reg Rpt101731
	11b Board Expenses, 1st Qtr, FY15
	99 Newspaper Article



